
          

 

 

BEELINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 16, 2023 
10:30 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.beelinecdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
 

AGENDA 
BEELINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The Oaks Center 
 2501 Burns Road, Suite A 

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

May 16, 2023 
10:30 a.m. 

 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. February 21, 2023 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………………Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Update on Fire and Water Systems 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Permit Request to Install a Line via HDD Under District Canal…………...Page 5 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget………..Page 6 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Monthly Status Report – Operations………………………………………………………………..Page 15 

2. Monthly Status Report – Engineer………………………………………………………………….Page 18 

J. Board Members Comment 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



1 
 

BEELINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 21, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The February 21, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Beeline Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 10:31 a.m. in the Conference Room of The Oaks Center located at 
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410.   
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in The Palm Beach Post on October 7, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors: 
 
Chair John Sillan Present 
Vice-Chair William Howden Present 
Supervisor Joseph Pruszynski Present via phone. 
Supervisor Robert Simm  Present  
Supervisor Jack Harris, Jr. Absent 
 
Also in attendance were:   
District Manager Todd Wodraska 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

Landowner Rep RL Busby Pratt Whitney 
District Engineer Karen Brandon AECOM 
District Counsel Dennis Lyles (via phone) Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & 

Ramsey, PA 
 
D.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
  
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

1. November 15, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
  

Page 2



2 
 

A motion was made by Mr. Sillan, seconded by Mr. Simm and unanimously passed approving the 
minutes of the November 15, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented.   
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Update on Fire and Water Systems 
 
Ms. Brandon and Mr. Wodraska provided reported on a meeting with Johnson & Davis (J&D) to resolve 
outstanding payments and final closeout of the project.  The discussion centered on a final payment 
application of approximately $110,000 for J&D but staff pointed out delays and legitimate claims for 
liquidated damages.  After a lengthy discussion and negotiation staff recommended a final payment, 
which could be considered a settlement, of $40,000.  The property owner, Congress Avenue Properties, 
has verbally consented to pay this amount contingent on the CDD receiving the final release of lien to 
finally close out the project.  The consensus of the Board was to move forward with staff 
recommendation. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS    
 
 1.  Consider Approval of Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Simm, seconded by Mr. Sillan and unanimously passed approving new 
District Counsel Fee structure proposed by staff. 
 

2. Consider Approval of Change Order No. 6 for Johnson-Davis, Inc. Fire Protection 
System Improvements Phase 2 
 
Mrs. Brandon presented the deductive change order of $69,966. 57, which $40,000 less that the final pay 
application submitted by J&D.  Staff recommended approval. 
 

A motion was made by Mr. Sillan, seconded by Mr. Howden and unanimously passed approving 
Change Order No. 6 for Johnson-Davis, Inc. Fire Protection System Improvements Phase 2. 
 

3.Consider Approval of Pay Application No. 8 (Final) from Johnson-Davis, Inc. Fire 
Protection System Improvements Phase 2 
 
Mrs. Brandon presented the pay application in the amount of $40,000, which was the negotiated amount 
recommended by staff.  This payment is contingent on the CDD receiving the final release of lien. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Pruszynski, seconded by Mr. Simm and unanimously passed approving Pay 
Application No. 8 (Final) from Johnson-Davis, Inc. Fire Protection System Improvements Phase 2. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
1. Monthly Status Report - Operations 

 
Mr. Wodraska presented the February and March reports.  There were no questions from the Board 
Members. 

 
2. Monthly Status Report – Engineer 

Page 3



3 
 

 
Mrs. Brandon reported on a washout that was recently discovered near a CDD canal.  After inspecting the 
area and putting protective materials around the site it was her opinion that the washout was a private 
property issue and not caused by the CDD’s facilities. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no comments from the Board Members. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:01 a.m. by Mr. Sillan.  There were no objections. 
 
 
 
____________________________            _________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary                Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 4



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PERMIT 
REQUEST TO INSTALL A LINE VIA HDD 

UNDER DISTRICT CANAL  
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
BEELINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Beeline Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE BEELINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for       , 2023 
at 10:30 a.m. in The Oaks Center, 2501 Burns Road, Suite A, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 
33410, for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 16th day of May, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: BEELINE 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 6



   Beeline
  Community Development District

       Proposed Budget For
        Fiscal Year 2023/2024

          October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



BISHOP ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALISTS, INC. 
3 St. Giles Road, Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33418 

(561) 310-4529 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 1, 2023 

 
Todd Wodraska 
Beeline Community Development District 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida  33410 
 
Re: Monthly Status Report 

 
Dear Mr. Wodraska: 

 
Bishop Environmental Specialists, Inc. (“BES”) is pleased to offer the following BCDD ball park storm 
water pump station progress report.  
 
Storm Water Pump Station (Scope D) 
 
BES personnel have monitored as described in approved Scope D and continue recording canal levels on 
both the intake and discharge side of the pump station as well as pump/gate operation and elapsed time 
readings. BES has performed weekly functional and load testing for gates, pumps and the emergency 
generator and is monitoring system telemetry for operational status changes.  
 
The system performed as designed throughout the month.  Major scheduled service was performed on the 
emergency generator in February with all related systems functioning well.  BES staff noted vibration 
during operation of slide gate for pump number 2.  Lubricating the slides with a vegetable based grease 
reduced the vibration temporarily, but on February 26, the gate motor began stalling during testing.  
Service has been arranged through Murray Logan Construction and will be performed within the 
following week. 
 
If you require additional information, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
BISHOP ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALISTS, INC. 
Rim Bishop, President 

Page 15



BISHOP ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALISTS, INC. 
3 St. Giles Road, Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33418 

(561) 310-4529 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 1, 2023 

 
Todd Wodraska 
Beeline Community Development District 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida  33410 
 
Re: Monthly Status Report 

 
Dear Mr. Wodraska: 

 
Bishop Environmental Specialists, Inc. (“BES”) is pleased to offer the following BCDD ball park storm 
water pump station progress report.  
 
Storm Water Pump Station (Scope D) 
 
BES personnel have monitored as described in approved Scope D and continue recording canal levels on 
both the intake and discharge side of the pump station as well as pump/gate operation and elapsed time 
readings. BES has performed weekly functional and load testing for gates, pumps and the emergency 
generator and is monitoring system telemetry for operational status changes.  
 
The system performed as designed throughout the month.  BES staff met with Murray Logan 
Construction on site to troubleshoot the gate operating system.  During opening, the gate was making 
noise and the operating motor was stalling before the gate was fully opening.  The gate guides were 
lubricated with a suitable vegetable based grease and the motor torque limiter was reset.  Multiple 
rechecks during March revealed that the system is now working properly. 
 
If you require additional information, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
BISHOP ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALISTS, INC. 
Rim Bishop, President 

Page 16



BISHOP ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALISTS, INC. 
3 St. Giles Road, Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33418 

(561) 310-4529 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 1, 2023 

 
Todd Wodraska 
Beeline Community Development District 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida  33410 
 
Re: Monthly Status Report 

 
Dear Mr. Wodraska: 

 
Bishop Environmental Specialists, Inc. (“BES”) is pleased to offer the following BCDD ball park storm 
water pump station progress report.  
 
Storm Water Pump Station (Scope D) 
 
BES personnel have monitored as described in approved Scope D and continue recording canal levels on 
both the intake and discharge side of the pump station as well as pump/gate operation and elapsed time 
readings. BES has performed weekly functional and load testing for gates, pumps and the emergency 
generator and is monitoring system telemetry for operational status changes.  
 
The system performed as designed throughout the month.  The gate motor and lift mechanism, both of 
which were serviced last month, performed satisfactorily in testing throughout the month.  Though there 
were multiple heavy rainfall events during the month, through April 26, they did not raise the water level 
sufficiently to activate the lead pump.  Pre-existing dry weather water levels were approximately 2.5 feet 
below the control elevation, so the basin has yet to reach control. 
 
If you require additional information, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
BISHOP ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALISTS, INC. 
Rim Bishop, President 

Page 17



p:\60618448\400-technical\480 monthly engr reports\bcdd eng report may 2023.docx

AECOM

2090 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd

Suite 600

West Palm Beach, FL 33409

www.aecom.com

561 684 3375 tel

MEMORANDUM

TO: The Board of Supervisors
Beeline Community Development District

FROM: Karen D. Brandon, P.E., District Engineer  KDB

DATE: May 8, 2023
____________________________________________________________

RE: ENGINEER'S REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 2023 - APRIL 2023

The following is a summary of activities and communications that were of significance since 
the last Board meeting:

A. Fire Protection System Improvements – Phase 2

The Final Release of Lien was received from Johnson-Davis, and the certified Bill of Sale and 
Property Owner’s No Lien Affidavit were signed by BCDD. The final close-out documents were
submitted to PBCWUD. PBCWUD then emailed additional comments on the as-built drawings, 
which were addressed by Johnson-Davis on April 29, 2023. The as-builts were re-submitted 
to PBCWUD on May 2, 2023 and a follow-up email was sent on May 8, 2023. We are now 
waiting on their final acceptance.

Should you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me for more detailed 
information on the above.

cc: Todd Wodraska
Andrew Karmeris
Rim Bishop

Page 18


	Beeline Community Development District - May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	February 21, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Approval of Permit Request to Install a Line via HDD Under District Canal	
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget
	Monthly Status Report – Operations
	Monthly Status Report – Engineer




